
CITY CORPORATION
Russellville Water and Sewer System

205 West 3rd Place PO Box 3186 Russellville, AR 72811-3186
Phone (479) 968-2105

FAX (479) 968-3265

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

DATE:

Board of Directors

Steve Mallett

City Corporation- July Board Meeting

July 16,2013

Enclosed is the agenda for the City Corporation Board of Directors meeting scheduled for
Tuesdav. JuIv 16.2013 at 4:00 n.m. at the Main Office Conference Room.

Distribution: Don Guess
Art Jones
Frank Russenberger
Luke Duffreld
Harold Barr

Larry Collins
Bob Hardin
Alex Streett
Mayor Bill Eaton
Mark Tripp
Richard Harris
Randall Horton
Freddie Harris
Seth Irwin- Liaison
Spencer Roberts
Martin Irwin
Garland Steuber
Clint Bell
Dee Brown
Gary Bennett
John Choate

Andrew Pownall
KARV
The Courier
River Valley Leader
River Valley Radio



 
 Agenda 

City Corporation Board Meeting 
205 West Third Place 

 Tuesday, July 16, 2013, 4:00 p.m.  
 
 
(1) Call to Order         D. Guess 
 
(2) Approval of the June, 2013 Minutes       D. Guess 
 
(3) Review and Consideration of June, 2013 Financials    L. Collins 
 
(4) General Manager’s Report       L. Collins 
 
(5) Capital Projects Status Report      L. Collins 
 
(6) Operating Reports        L. Collins 
 a. Wastewater Plant       
 b. Inflow and Infiltration 

c. Water Plant 
d. Statistical Report  

 
(7) Consideration of Contract for Auditing Services    L. Collins 
 
(8)  Consideration of Retirement Resolution 
 
(9) Consent Administrative Order Update     C. Bell 
 
(10) PCW Plant Design Update       A. Pownall 
 
(11) Adjourn         D. Guess 



Board ltem f 2

Item Descrlption: Approval of June 2013 Minutes

Discusslon: Minutes are routine.

Recommendatlon: Approval is requested.



City Corporation 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 

Main Office Conference Room 
Tuesday, June 18, 2013, 4:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 
 
Directors: Don Guess   Art Jones    
  Luke Duffield   Harold Barr 
 
City Corp: Steve Mallett   Jim Lynch 
  Kenny Lutz   Larry Collins    

Renae Taylor   Lance Bartlett 
  Randy Bradley   Brenda Austin 
  Hope Penman 
   
Others  Clint Bell   Oren Noble 
  Andrew Pownall  David Garza 
  Aaron Stallmann   
   
   
   
Chairman Guess called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Approval of the May 2013 Minutes: Art Jones made a motion to approve the minutes.  Luke 
Duffield seconded.  Minutes were approved as presented. 
 
Review and Consideration of the May2013 Financials:  On the water side, revenues were 1.4% 
($6,171.97) under budgeted amounts for the month.  The yearly variance is running 0.66% less 
than budgeted amounts.  Total Operations & Maintenance (O&M) expense for the month was 
2.4% under budget ($9,343.40).  The O&M budget amount was $387,994.20 with the actual 
O&M monthly total being $378,650.80.  The yearly variance is 1.9% ($89,709.02) over projected 
budget.  The net income for the month was 5.1% ($3,104.93) more than the budgeted income.  
On the sewer side, revenues were 3.3% ($11,028.75) under projected amounts.  The budgeted 
revenue was projected to be $336,065.00 with the actual total revenue being $325,036.25.  The 
yearly variance is 4.3% ($156,465.97) under budget.  Total O & M expense was $129,104.68 
over budget.  The yearly variance is 14.8% ($627,330.00) under budget projections.  The net 
income for the month was 130.9% ($118,431.16) less of a loss than anticipated.  Luke Duffield 
made a motion to approve the May2013 financials.  Harold Barr seconded. The Financial Report 
was approved as presented.   
 
Chief Operating Officer Report: Steve Mallet gave an update to the Board regarding several 
items that he has been working on recently. Among those items, he addressed the 2013/2014 
Budget.  Mallett thanked staff and the Board for their input and involvement during the 

1 

 



process.  Mallett also stated that the Consumer Confidence Reports were being sent out to all 
customers as required by law.  A copy was provided in the packets.  Mr. Mallett reported that 
he met with Dan Jackson, City Corporation rate consultant, and John Choate concerning the 
wholesale water rate for Tri-county that should be adjusted on an annual basis in accordance 
with a formula outlined in the current agreement.  After clarifying an error in the last audit, the 
rate will be adjusted from $1.35 to $1.44 per 1,000 gallons.  Mr. Mallett also explained that City 
Corporation received a letter from the Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality 
summarizing violations from the twenty month period of August 1, 2011 through March 31, 
2013 which numbered 29.  City Corporation, with the assistance of Clint Bell and CDM Smith 
provided a response and efforts to correct each violation.  The letter appears to be a routine 
review that is performed on all permitted facilities and no an indication of lack of performance 
on City Corporation’s behalf.  Mr. Mallett attended several meetings in the month including 
USGS, Sales Tax Meetings, CleaResults and the Arkansas Valley Alliance Meeting.   
 
Capital Projects Status Report:  Larry Collins reported on the various capital projects that are 
currently open within the system.  Aaron Stallmann gave an update on the 23rd Street Gravity 
Line.           
 
Operating Reports:  Collins reported that all operations had run smoothly for the month.  Plant 
staff has been busy this month with painting and mowing.  The elevation of the reservoir is at 
459.7 which is 0.6 feet down.   The lake was four feet down this time last year.  Mr. Collins also 
pointed out that there was one violation this month for the PCW Facility.  The violation was for 
copper loading.   
 
Consideration of 2013-2014 Budget:  Art Jones made a motion to accept the 2013-2014 budget.  
Luke Duffield seconded.  Budget was approved as presented.  Mr. Mallett also presented the 
board with a Resolution authorizing budget amendments to certain capital improvement 
projects to be carried over into the 2013-2014 Capital and Operations and Maintenance 
Budget.  Art Jones made a motion to approve the resolution.  Harold Barr seconded.  The 
Resolution passed.   
 
El Paso Water and Wastewater Relocation Bid:  Bids were received on June 7, 2013, for the 
North El Paso Utility Relocation.  The low bidder was Willis Parks Construction in the amount of 
$541,876.42.  Luke Duffield made a motion to approve the bid.  Harold Barr seconded.  Bid was 
accepted.  
 
Certificate of Deposit Bid:  Bids were accepted on the Certificate of Deposit Bid for the 
$474,963.22 which is currently at Liberty Bank.  Mr. Mallett suggested that some of the 
requirements be reviewed before the next bid to see if they are too stringent and therefore 
hampering the number and percentages of bids received.  Harold Barr suggested the 
requirements be brought before the Board before the next Certificate is advertised for bid.  Art 
Jones made a motion to approve the bid.  Luke Duffield seconded.  The bid was accepted.   
 

2 

 



City of Russellville/ City Corporation Lease Renewal:  Per the current lease agreement between 
City Corporation and the City of Russellville, both parties are required to provide notice of 
intent to renew and extend the lease by 12 months.  Art Jones made a motion to pass the 
resolution demonstrating City Corporation’s intent to extend the lease.  Harold Barr seconded.  
Resolution was passed as presented.   
 
Consideration of Administrative Policy for Purchasing:  Revisions were made to the former 
purchasing policy per staff and board recommendations.  Harold Barr made a motion to 
approve the revised policy.  Luke Duffield seconded.  Policy was approved as presented.   
  
Consent Administrative Order Update:  Clint Bell gave an update on various projects pertaining 
to the CAO.  KAJACs has completed one road bore in front of Walgreens and all pipe activity 
associated with the construction work west of Knoxville and north of East 2nd street.  The 
contractor is currently working on East 2nd Street.  Design work is complete for the City Mall 
project.  Plans have been submitted to the Health Department, the Highway Department, and 
City Corporation for review and comment.   
 
PCW Plant Design Update:  Andrew Pownall gave an update on the progress relating to the 
improvements at the Pollution Control Works Facility.  The PCW Schedule 1 – Dechlorination 
project is under construction currently.  A monthly meeting was conducted earlier in the day 
between City Corporation, CDM Smith, and the contractor, VEI.  A pre-construction conference 
will be set for the Schedule II – Nitrate Removal project once the VE (Value Engineering) 
alternatives are addressed.  It is expected that the notice to proceed will be issued in late June.   
 
Executive Session:  The Board went into executive session for a performance evaluation of the 
General Manager.  The Board emerged and stated that the General Manager had exceeded 
expectations for the evaluation period.   
  
Harold Barr made a motion to adjourn. Luke Duffield seconded.  Motion carried.  Meeting was 
adjourned.   
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
C. Frank Russenberger, Secretary  

3 

 



Board ltem # 3

Item Description: Review and Consideration of June 2013 Financials

Discussion: Staff will review the financial report for the previous month and

discuss any items of note within the report.

Recommendation: Approval is requested.



CIry CORPORATION WATER SYSTEM
6-30-13

Tl€atment Expsnse was 5.1olo (93,963.90) under budget forthe month. Labor was 9.1% ($1,504.56) over budget due to covering vacations
and sic* leave. Laboralory E)eenses r€re 526.5% ($1,579.38) over budgetdue to additional testing that was required. O/S Cont.-Treatment
Equip. was 81.50/6 ($1,100.00) under budget with fer €r SCADA and el€clrical issues this month. ChemicalExp€nse was 6.2% (91,698.84)
under budgel as less waier was produced than had anticipated (due to cool€r weaihe.). Power Purchasss for Pumping yrere 25.0%
($4,480.88) undsr budget due to less water pumpage than anticipated for th€ month. Yearend tolalwas 6.2% ($71,85i.71) over budget.

OPERATING & iIAINT. EXPENSES

101.113.25

@9!ggwas 4.206 ($20,200.38) under budget. Residential Sales u,ere 0.2% ($346.37) over budget and Comme,ciel sales e/e.e 10.7016
($6,392.04) over budget. lndustrial Sales were 20.4% ($19,354.26) under budget and Sales - Public Authorities were '10.60/6 (92,340.75)
underbudget. Municipal Sales were 16.3% (9975.72) underbudgeland Wholesale Sales were 7.6% ($5,326.90) under budget. Tapping Fees
u,e.e 106.'l% ($1,060.97) over budget with mor€ neu, construclion p.ojeds lhan anlicipated. Yearend total wEs 0.97% (g54"566.s5) und;r
budget.

Suoolv Exponee was 138.00/6 (99,379.45) over budget. Reservoir power was 849.9% (98,626.94) ove. budget as rea€Noir pumps were ran
one last lime prior lo summer demands. Comput€r Expense was 2640.6010 (g'1 ,980.45) ov6r budget due to unbudgeted printer replacsment.
Communication Services rwre Bl.1% (9320.40) under budget due to the timing ofthe phone bills. year end tolatwas,l3l% (920,879.92) over
budget.

Pumoino Expense was 14.3olo (92,350.35) under budget. Materiats - Mainlofpumpjng Equipmentwere 9i.8% (9367.37) under budget du€ to
bwer b.eakdowns than anticjpated. O/S Cont. Maint ot Treatment Equipment was 27.80/6 (941 1 .25) under budget. This is due to moting
conlrac,lorwork for the monlh being less than anticipated. Po,r€r purchases for pumping were 1 l.0olo (91,090.92) underbudget as tess water
was pump€d dua to the cooler weather Year end total was 9.50/6 (920,268.70) under budget.



CIIY CORPC'RATION WATER $YSTE
6-30-13

llalnbn nc. Ero.nse ryas 47.1% ($20,g3,2.12) orrsr budget. ll#dd8 -Transmission Mdm s€re 332.5% ($23,939.55) over budget due to
adjuslrn€nts mado efter year€nd lnventory of siocs. Mat3rials - Sorvlces welo 52.4% ($1005.27) und€r budget due to bwBr l€ak rcpails than
anticipeted. YeaFto{ab iotalwas 18.8% ($106,871.97) ov€r brdget.

Admlnhffiv€ & Goneral ExEnle was 6.0% ($3,326.02) undsr budgel ior lh€ month. Salaries - Enginesdng was 26.6% ($1,214.48) undsr
budget due to a now employor et s loll,er wag€ scals. Training Exp€nse was 99.5% ($1,ali}9.83) u br budgot with plann€d lraining not being
done lhis ysar Travel & PeGonal E)esme had no osense thb month lylth less trawl belng dons by n€w employ€es. Outside Ssrvicss rvas
37,1% ($4,940.15) ov€r budgal this month du€ to engineedng b€s pald ior assistanca et th6 WatarTEatnent Plant. Public Ralations yvsrs
258.6% (S1 ,ffi4.50) ol,or budgsl wih invoicB rslabd io producing and mailing ths CCR tor 201 2. Yesr-{odate totel uras I 3.2% ($87,731 .49)
und€r budget.



CITY CORPORATIOiI SEWER SYSTEM
6-30-13

BUDGET
OI{THLY
TOTAL

I{ONTHLY
VARIANCE 

'3}

iITHLY.
VARIANCE

t%l Y-T.D TOTAL
YEARLY

vARtAitcE (s)
YRLY.

VARIANCE
REVENUE $ 336.365.00 $ 30s.779.69 $ (30,585.31 -9.1% $ 3.745.224.72 s (187.05'1.28 47

OPERATING & MAIT{T. EXPENSES
PUITIPING EXPENSE $ 14,208.00 '11.722.23 Q.445.77 17.5 $ 191,971 04 12.742.O4 7j%
TREAT ENT EXP. $ 79.410.00 64.723.23 (10.686.77) -'t3.5% $ 845.131.31 (30,277.69) -3.5%
COLLECTION EXPENSE 33,898.00 31,987.36 (1,910.64 -5.6% 341.434.22 $ (41,480. -9.8oi
CUST.ACCT. EXP. 22.774.0O 21.431.11 1,342. -5.9 302.760.44 (4.403.56) 't.4'
AD IN.& GEN. EXP. $ 104,839.00 83,685.01 {21.153.99) -202% s 8s2.637 (362,885.97) -28.986
PRETREAT IENT EXP. 8.135.00 8.571.56 436.56 5.4% 100.257.26 ('t1 .557.74) -10.3%
INTEREST CHARGES 60,000.00 $ 73.350.00 13,350. 22.3% 146.700.00 $ (2'13,300.00 -5S
DEPRECIATION & AMORT $ 95,500.00 s 95,500.00 L$ L 0.0olo l$ 1,146,000.00 $ 0.00/.

TOTALO&MEXP. s 418.764.00 s 394.970.50 s (23.793.50 -5.7Vo s 4.008.291.30 $ (6s1,123.s0) -'l4.Oot

OTHER INCOME & EXPENSES
ll{T & rsc.NoN-oP.REV $ 310.00 $ 582.16 s 272.16 a7.a% s 5.167.37 $ 1.447 37 38.9%

NET rNCOirE (LOSS) $ (82.089. $ (88,608.6s) $ (6,519.6s 7.gvo $ (237,895.21 $ 465,519.59 -ffi.20k

Revenue was 9.1% ($30,585.31) under budgel for the month. Sales-Customer Billing wete A.4yo ($27,A62.26) under budget. Several non-
residential sewer customers had decreased wat€r sales this month including some of the larger induslries. Sewer Surcharg€ was 50.1%
($2,103.05) under budget due to more industries meeting lheir permit limits. Tapping Fees were 33.3% ($600.00) under budget as a resuttofan
increase in new service installations for the month, although !r/s are over for the year. Yearend lotalwas 4.7olo ($187,051.28) under budget.

Pumplnq Exosnsewas 17.5o/o ($2,485.77)under budget for the month. Mat€rials - Maint. ofpumping Equipmentwere 82.B% (9828.12)under
budgetdue to ftr€r equipment breakdowns than anlicipated. Power Purchases $rere 24.A% (g'l ,4e/'.44\ over budget as this account was under
budgeted for this month. O/S Cont. -Maint. ofPumping Equipmentwas 75.8olo ($2,2'19.50) under budget as there were fewer equipment
problems. Year end totalwas 7 -1Vo l$12,782.04) over budget.

Tmatment Exponso was 13.5% ($10,686.77) under budgetior lhe month. Labor- Treatnentwas 7.7% (9861 .63) under budget due to a vacant
position. Materials - Treatment Equipment were 83.0% ($1 ,121 .01) over budget as the chemical for midge fly control was not budgeled. O/S
Contractor- Treatment Equipmentwas 65.60/6 ($3,594.87) unde. budget due to few€r breakdowns than anticipated.
Potwr Purchases for TreatnEnt were 18.9% ($6,803.76) underbudgetdue to not running fie aeratoE in the storm wator basins. Transportation
was 153.3% ($1 ,210.82) over budgel because of repairs to the sludge spreader truck. Yearend totalwas 3.5% ($30,277.69) under budget.

Colloctlon Expense was 5 6% ($1 ,910.64) under budgetfor th€ month Labor- Maint of Collection Lin€s was 9.6oi (9,|,116.83) undorbudg€t
due to neurs. employees at a lower wage scale. Materials - l&l had no expense this month with fewer repairs being made. Materials Mainl of
Colleclion Lings u,ere 27.7% ($996.52) over budget due to adjustments made after th6 year-and inventory of stores. Transportation was 53.2olo
($'1 ,701 .68) over budget with tepairs to a back hoe, the jetter and three trailers. Year end total was 9.8% (S41,480.58) under budget.

CustomerAccount Eralgnse was 5.9% ($1,342.89) under budget. Outside Services !r€.e 4'l .2% ($1 ,237 .241under budget with the invoices lor
last portion of months outsourced billing being received in July. Year end total was '1 .4% ($4,403 56) under budget



CITY CORPOR,ATION SEWER SYSTE I
6-30-13

Administration & Genoral Exoense was 20.2% ($21,153.99)under budgel for the month. Salaries- Engineering !t ere 26.6% ($594.32) under
budget due to a new employer at a loveer wage scale. Training was 99.4% ($1 ,160.22) under budget with anticipated training notbeing done.
Communication Services were 79.7% ($583.69) under budget due to the timing of the phone bills. Travel & Personal Expenae had no;xpensE
this month with budget€d travel not being done by n€w employees. Outside S€rvices u,eB 2Oj% (9'16,271.42) under budget du6 to legal and
engineering vvolk associated with Consent Adminishative Order (ADEQ/EPA) not being done as quickly as planned. Year 6nd total was 28.970
($362,885.97) under budgel.

PEhEatment Exoena€ was 5.4oi (S436.56) over budgel tor the month. Labor - Pr€feafnentwas 6.'l% (5322.43) under budget vyith less
overtime required ttran planned. Laboratory Expenses twre '199.0% ($796.00) over budget due to addilional industrial sampling. Yearend total
was 10.3% ($1 1,557.74) under budget.

lnlgPst Charqas was 22.3% ($13,350.00) over budget as the 20'12 S€wer Bond will havo quaderly interest payments mad6 beginning on March
20, 2013. These intersst paymenls will g,adually decrease ov6r the lite of the bond but this fi.st inlerest payment will be in the amounaof
S73,350.00. At the time of budget preparation, this infornalion was nol known so an arbitrary monthly amount was used. The first quarterly
principal payment on March 20, 2013 was $80,224.40. This principal payment will be reflecEd on the Balance Sheet under Long T€rm Debi and
th€ account 01-02-050-221000 (Revenue Bonds Outstanding). Year ond total rvas 59.3% ($213,300.00) under budget.

Otherlncome& Expgnse was 87.8% ($272.16)over budgel. Thisisdueto interestfrom the 20'12 Sewer ConEtruction Bond Fund yearend
totalwas 38.9% ($1,447.37) over budget.























































Board ltem # 4

Item Description: General Manage/s Report

Discusslon: An update will be provided to the Board on several key items

addressed during the last month. Progress will be noted for discussion.

Recommendatlon: No action required.



General Manager’s Report 
July 16, 2013 

 
 

1. Tri County Rate Update – At the last Board meeting, I presented the rate adjustment for Tri-
County which included a spreadsheet that calculated the increases for the last few years based 
on the calculation in the Agreement.  The spreadsheet indicated that the rate should have been 
adjusted from $1.35 to $1.60 after receiving the 2010/11 Audit.  The rate has been adjusted 
upon receiving last year’s audit, but the Board inquired as to the loss of revenues from failing to 
implement the new rate in late 2011 for the 2012 year.  Hope has determined that if the rate 
had been modified from $1.35 to $1.60 per thousand gallons as it should have, City Corporation 
would have received an additional $170,127.75 from January through December of 2012.  Staff 
has made Tri-County aware of this item, but has not initiated any efforts to collect this amount 
pending Board discussion and direction.   
 

2. June City Council Meeting – All went well at the June City Council meeting with the council 
approving the extension to the City Corporation lease, approving the funding plan and voting 
date for the sales tax extension, as well as approving an ordinance between the Cities of 
Russellville and Dover related to the City of Dover’s pledge to enforce the provisions of our 
wastewater pretreatment ordinance.  There was also some discussion about reducing the rights 
of way on several city streets but this item was tabled until the utilities could provide more 
detailed information about how such changes may or may not affect various utilities in those 
areas.   
 

3. Also visited/attended: 
a. Met with Stella Jones Industry to discuss providing wastewater service to their facility  
b. Spent Friday the 21st in field with Lance Bartlett visiting various facilities and/or projects 
c. Sales Tax Meetings 
d. Attended Tri-County Board Meeting 
e. Attended Arkansas Valley Alliance meeting  

 



Board ltem # 5

Item Description: Capital Projects Status Report

Discussion: Status will be reported on the current City Corporation projects.

Recommendation: No action required.



 
June 2013 Capital Projects Status Report 

 
 

1. Water Treatment Plant Alum Storage Building:  Garver received approval of 
plans and specifications from the Arkansas Health Department.  Garver will 
advertise the project for bidding when directed by City Corporation.  Project is on 
hold by City Corporation.  
 

2. PCW Lime Scales:  City Corporation has placed on hold until it is determined if 
lime system will be compatible with new plant modifications.     
 

3. I-40 Water and Sewer:  Garver has completed the design of the water line and 
project is ready for bidding.  Garver is writing the easements for the waterline and 
will submit to City Corporation and their attorney for acquisition.   Sewer line 
portion of the project is on hold until City Corporation completes overall system 
study.  
 

4. 23rd Street Gravity Line:  Garver will be providing Project Design along with 
Construction Administration/Observation in conjunction with City Corporation 
for the project.   This project advertised on July 7, 2013 and bids will be opened 
on July 22, 2013.  Garver is preparing easement documents to be delivered to City 
Corporation for property acquisition.      
 

5. Carbon Feed System Replacement:   The Contract has been awarded to 
Instrument and Supply of Hot Springs, Arkansas to provide the equipment and 
labor to replace this system.  Garver has received and returned the first submittal 
to ISI.  The equipment should be ordered and in fabrication.  The vendor has 
informed Garver that the equipment is expected to arrive on or near the 19th of 
this month.   
 

6. Western Hills Painting Project: This project has been suspended due to weather 
until the fall of 2013.  Once the Contractor mobilized and was ready to begin 
work, the tank began sweating due to the increase in air temperature and humidity 
levels.  While the tank is sweating, the contractor is unable to apply the coatings 
to the tank surface.  The plan is to have the Contractor resume work this fall when 
the temperatures are lower and the tank stops sweating.     
 

7. Local Developments / Construction: City Corporation staff is currently 
monitoring (11) local developments at this time. The breakout for these projects 
has been included.  



Current Project Developments  
 
We are currently monitoring the following project developments.  A project development 
is considered any addition or removal of a water or sewer main or an appurtence there of. 
For the purpose of this report, the following shall be defined as listed: 
 

1. Commercial Property – a main extension for the purpose of providing service 
to one commercial customer. 

2. Residential Property – a main extension for the purpose of providing service 
to one residential customer. 

3. Subdivision Residential – a main extension for the purpose of providing 
service to a development of 2 or more lots (an actual subdivision). 

4. Subdivision Commercial – a main extension for the purpose of providing 
service to a development of 2 or more lots (an actual commercial 
development). 

 
Water Only Main Extension: Count: Project Number: 
 Commercial Property: 1 98-267    
 Residential Property: 1 98-257  
 Subdivision Residential: 1 98-258 
 Replacement:  2 97-188; 97-229; 97-231; 97-232 
Sewer Only Main Extension: 
 Commercial Property: 0   
 Residential Property: 0   
 Subdivision Residential: 0  
 Replacement 5 97-186; 97-218; 97-222; 97-225;  
   97-230; 97-233   
 Relocation 1 98-266    
 Private Fire line Main Extension: 
 Commercial Property: 3 97-226; 97-227; 97-228    
Water & Sewer Main Extensions: 
 Commercial Property: 2 98-243; 98-244 
 Residential Property: 0    
 Subdivision Commercial: 0  
            Subdivision Residential: 4 98-261; 98-262; 98-263; 98-264   
 Total Developments under Supervision: 
 Commercial Private Fire 3 
 Commercial Property: 1 
 Residential Property: 1 
 Subdivision Commercial: 2 
 Subdivision Residential: 5 
 Relocation Projects 11 
 
  Total: 23 
 



Current Project Developments

We are currently monitoring the following project developments. A project development
is considered any addition or removal of a water or sewer main or an appurtence there of.
For the purpose ofthis report, the following shall be defined as listed:

1. Commercial Properiv - a main extension for the purpose of providing service
to one commercial customer.

2. Residential Property - a main extension for the purpose of providing service
to one residential customer.

3. Subdivision Residential - a main extension for the purpose of providing
service to a development of2 or more lots (an actual subdivision).

4. Subdivision Commercial - a main extension for the purpose of providing
service to a development of 2 or more lots (an actual commercial
development).

Water Only Main Extension: Comt: Proiect Number;
Commercial Properfy: I 98-267
Residential Property: I 98-257
Subdivision Residential: I 98-258
Replacement: 2 97-188;97-229;97-231;97-232

Sewer Onlv Main Extension:
Commercial Property: 0
Residential Property: 0
Subdivision Residential: 0
Replacement 5 97-186;97-218;97-222;97-225:

97-230:97-233
Relocation I 98-266

Private Fire line Main Extension:
Commercial Property: 3 97-226;97-227;97-228

Water & Sewer Main Extensions:
Commercial Property: 2 98-243;98-244
Residential Property: 0
Subdivision Commercial: 0
Subdivision Residential: 4 98-261;98-262;98-263;98-264

Total Develooments under Supervision:
Commercial Private Fire 3

Commercial Property: 1

Residential Property: 1

Subdivision Commercial: 2
Subdivision Residential: 5
Relocation Projects 1l

Total: 23



CITY CORPORATION PROJECT STATUS REPORT
DEVELOPER PROJECTS

AS OF JULY l, 2013

CITY CORPORATION PROJECT STATUS REPORT
CITY CORPORATION PROJECTS

AS OF JULY ,t, 2013

PROJECT # TITLE DEVELOPER CONTRACTOR STATUS DESCRIPTION

2
3

5
6
7

1

1

8
9
t0
11
,12

13

097-226
097-227
097-228
098-243
098-244
098-258
098-261
098-262
098-263
098-264
098-266
098-267
098-268

Mrllard Henry PF
Beacon Tire PF

Neighborhood Market PF
Weir & Hob Knob Waler
Weir & Hob Knob Sewer

Riverstone Subdivision Water
West End Village Water
West End Mllage Sewer
Stonebrook Park Water
Stonebrook Park Sewer

3093 E Main Sewer Relocation
Neighborhood Market Water

Dollar General Sewer

Millard Henry Clinic
Beacon Tire

Wal-Mart
Russellville Reality
Russellville Reality

Alan Covington
West End Village Parlnership
West End Village Partnership
Russellville Housing Partners
Russellville Housing Partners

DDR
Wal-Mart

Dollar General

Lum Cossey
Northwest Fire Protection

N/A al this time
N/A at this tlms
N/A at this time
Alan Covington

Willis Parks Const
Willis Parks Const

Cobas
Cobas

N/A at this time
N/A at this time
N/A at this time

Testing
Plans approved 4/13
Waiting on election

ADH Extension till 5/14
ADH Extension till 5/14

Waiting on linal cost
Waiting on final cost
Waiting on final cost

Plans approved 11112
Plans approved 11l12
Plans approved 4/13
Waiting on election
Plans aDDroved 6/13

PROJECT # TITLE DEVELOPER CONTRACTOR STATUS DESCRIPTION
1

2
3
I
5
6
7
I
9
t0

097 186
097-188
097-218
097-222
097-225
097-229
097-230
097 -231
097 -232
097-233

CrtY CorP F40 Se\,r€r
City Corp l-40 Water

East 2nd St Sewer Rehab
Easl '1oth St Sewer Rehab

City Mall Wastewater lmprov
N El Paso Water Replacement
N El Paso Sewer Replacemenl

N Phoenix Overpass
E H St & Pa*e( Rd Water
E H St & Parker Rd Sewer

Crty CorpOration
City Corporation
City Corporation
City Corporation
City Corporation
City Corporation
City Corporation
City Corporation
City CoDoration
City Corporation

N/A at this time
N/A at this time

Kajacs Contractors
N/A at this time
N/A at this time

Willis Parks Const
Willis Parks Const
Willis Parks Const
Willis Parks Const
Willis Parks Const

Planning
Plans reviewed
Work underway

Waiting on Railroad Permit
Plans approved 12l12
Plans approved 5/13
plans approved 5/'13

Sampling
Work undeMay
Work undeMay



1

2

12

3

11

                Current Project Addresses
Project Address
1. 097-186 City Corp I-40 Sewer
2. 097-188 City Corp I-40 Water
3. 097-218 East 2nd St Sewer Rehab
4. 097-222 East 10th St Sewer Relocation
5. 097-225 City Mall Wastewater Improvements
6. 097-226 Millard Henry Private Fire
7. 097-227 Beacon Tire Private Fire
8. 097-228 Neighborhood Market Private Fire
9. 097-229 N El Paso Water Replacement
10. 097-230 N El Paso Sewer Replacement
11. 097-231 N Phoenix Overpass
12. 097-232 E H St & Parker Road Water
13. 097-233 E H St & Parker Road Sewer
14. 098-243 Weir & Hob Knob Water
15. 098-244 Weir & Hob Knob Sewer
16. 098-257 W 3rd St Frankhouse Water
17. 098-258 Riverstone Subdivision Water
18. 098-261 West End Village Water
19. 098-262 West End Village Sewer
20. 098-263 Stonebrook Park Addition Water
21. 098-264 Stonebrook Park Addition Sewer
22. 098-266 3093 E Main Sewer Relocation
23. 098-267 Neighborhood Market Water

13

14

4

16

15

17

18

5

6

19

7

8

20

9

10

21

22

23



Board ltem # 6

Item Desffiption: Operating Reports

Discussion: Status of system operations will be presented for Board discussion.

Reports presented will address the Pollution Control Works Facility, lnflow and

lnfiltration program, Water Plan! and system statistical information.

Recommendation: No action required.



June 2013 
Operating Report 

Wastewater 
City Corporation processed 952,200 gallons of sludge during the month of June 2013. 
All three storm water basins are currently empty. Maintenance crews have completed 
their regular maintenance tickets for the month. Plant staff continues to be been busy 
with painting and mowing. VEI set their job trailer up and started to work on the 
Dechlorination project February 12, 2013. 
   
Sewer Pump Stations: All of the maintenance tickets along with the pump station 
alarm checks were completed during the month of  2013. Staff cleaned all air release 
valves at the Prairie Creek sewer pump station. Made repairs to three grinder pumps.  
Placed an order for a new replacement impeller for one of the three pumps at Main 
Street sewer pump station. 
 
Wastewater treated for June 2013           145,604,000 gallons 
Wastewater treated for June 2012           120,444,000 gallons           
 
Rain Events: 2 days for 0.90” in June 2013 and 3 days for 1.90” in June 2012. 
 
Inflow and Infiltration  
Staff replaced 368 feet of 4 inch, 7 feet of 6 inch and 3 feet of 10 inch defective sewer 
pipe during June 2013. They root hogged and stripped grease from 2,440 feet of 
sewer mains and checked the condition of 88 sewer taps with 7 defects found. 
 
The Rover X camera was run for 5,382 feet. The push camera was run for 930 feet.  
 
Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) – 
 
Phase I – Complete.       
Phase II (7, 14, and 23) 

• SSES Complete     
 
Phase II (1, 2, 8, and 11) 

• SSES Complete 
 

Phase II (3,5,6, and 21) 
• The draft report was delivered at the May board meeting.  CWB Engineers is reviewing the 

draft. 
 



 
Water Treatment Plant 
Plant operations are doing well. All online meters at the WTP were calibrated by our 
staff during the month of June 2013. Our maintenance staff completed all the regular 
monthly maintenance tickets at the plant. Have ordered two replacement turbines for 
the Super Pulsator, should receive them in about six weeks. Operators busy with 
mowing at the plant.  
 
Water treated for June 2013              231,218,000 gallons     
Water treated for June 2012              299,580,000 gallons      
 
In June 2013 the filters were washed 13 times requiring 1.4 million gallons of water. 
This calculates to an average wash of 107,692 gallons / wash.  
 
Water Booster Stations and Tanks 
Maintenance staff completed all of the monthly maintenance tickets at the water 
stations and tank sites for the month of June 2013. No maintenance issues for the 
month. 
 
Huckleberry Creek Reservoir 
The elevation of the Reservoir is at 458.1 (2.2 feet down). The lake was 6.5 feet 
down this time last year.  Maintenance tickets for the month of June 2013 were 
completed. We have placed the order for the new carbon feeder, should be here the 
third week of July 2013. Lake Samples were collected at each gate June 17, 2013. All 
samples appear to be fine. The temperature of the lake at the surface is 86.3 
Fahrenheit and 56.2 Fahrenheit at the bottom. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Statistical Report 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

Produced 231,218,000 Gallons 

Plant Usage 4,582,000 Gallons 

To Distribution 226,636,000 Gallons 

System Usage 2,108,000 Gallons 

Available for Sale  224,528,000 Gallons 

Total Water Metered For Sale  186,246,000 Gallons 

Unaccounted For  38,282,000 Gallons 

12 Month to Date Average Percent Unaccounted For 12.75% 

Maximum Day Consumption 10,609,000 Gallons 

Average Day Consumption     7,707,000 Gallons 

 Customer Growth (June 2012 compared to June 2013)                                                        +2.95%                                                                                       

Number of Customers: June 2012 (11,984) June 2013 (12,328) 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Gallons Treated 145,604,000 Gallons 

Maximum Daily Flow 9,184,000 Gallons 

Average Daily Flow  4,852,000 Gallons 

 Customer Growth (June 2012 compared to June 2013)                                                       + 2.03% 

Number of Customers: June 2012 (10,546) June 2013 (10,799) 

Violations:                                                                                                                                           1           
                                                                                                                            
Overflows                                                                                                                                            0  
 
Wet Testing                                                                                              3rd. Quarter results Pending
                                                                                                                                                                                                                            



7/11/2013

0 

50,000 

100,000 

150,000 

200,000 

250,000 

300,000 

350,000 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

1
,0

0
0

 G
a

ll
o

n
s

 

Month 

Water Statistics 
2012 - Present 

12 Produced 

12 Tot Wtr Mtr for Sale 

12 Water Unaccounted 

13 Produced 

13 TotWtrMtr for Sale 

13 Water Unaccounted 

231,218 

186,246 

38,282 



7/11/2013

9,500 

10,000 

10,500 

11,000 

11,500 

12,000 

12,500 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Month 

Total Customers 
2012 - Present 

12 Water 

12 Sewer 

13 Water 

13 Sewer 

12,328 

10,779 



7/11/2013

0% 

2% 

4% 

6% 

8% 

10% 

12% 

14% 

16% 

18% 

20% 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Month 

Water Unaccounted Percentage 
2012 - Present 

25 yr Ave 

2012 

2013 

17.04% 

11.03% 



Board Item #7 

Item Description: Consideration of Contract for Auditing Services 

Discussion: In accordance with state law governing the procurement of 
professional services and our newly adopted Purchasing Policy, City Corporation 
staff rated and ranked the three auditing firms that submitted Statements of 
Qualifications for our annual auditing services.  Based on the evaluation criteria, 
Shoptaw Labahn and Co. received the highest point total and staff feels they are 
well qualified to perform these services.  Shoptaw Labahn and Co. have 
performed these audit services for more than the past ten years.   The contract is 
based on their standard hourly rates, plus out of pocket costs, and is expected to 
be in the $12,500 to $13,500 range based on past history.   

Recommendation:  Approve contract for auditing services in an amount not to 
exceed $14,000.   

 

 







Board Item #8 

Item Description: Consideration of Retirement Resolution 

Discussion:  On an annual basis, the Board of Directors considers a Resolution 
authorizing City Corporation to make a contribution equal to 10% of each 
employee’s salary to the Employee Benefit Plan Fund for all eligible employees for 
the year ending June 30, 2013.  A portion of this amount, less than 1%, will be 
used to purchase long term disability insurance and the remainder will be placed 
in the employee’s retirement account.     

Recommendation:  Approve Retirement Resolution as submitted.     

 

 



RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, City Corporation maintains an Employee Benefit Plan Fund for the 

benefit of its employees; and 

WHEREAS, periodically, City Corporation contributes funds to the Employee 

Benefit Plans Fund for the benefit of its employees. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that City Corporation shall make a 

contribution in an amount equal to 10% of each employee’s annual wages to its 

Employee Benefit Plan Fund for all eligible employees for the year ending June 30, 2013, 

part of which is to be used to purchase long term disability with the balance to be placed 

in the employee’s retirement account. 

 

Dated this 16th day of July, 2013. 

 
        ________________________ 
        Don Guess, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 
C. Frank Russenberger, Secretary 
   



Board ltem # 9

Item Desciptlon: Consent Administrative Order Update

Discussion: CWB Engineers, lnc. will address past, present, and future

requirements of the Consent Administrative Order.

Recommendation: No action required.



CWB Engineers, Inc. 

Status Report – June 

Consent Administrative Order (CAO) – City Corporation has fulfilled all requirements in the CAP with 
the exception of submittal of the plans and specifications for future construction projects and annual 
CMOM submittals.   

Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) – The CMOM update has been completed 
and submitted to ADEQ and City Corporation. 

Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) – 

Phase I – Complete.       

Phase II (7, 14, and 23) 
• SSES Complete     

 
Phase II (1, 2, 8, and 11) 

• SSES Complete 
 

Phase II (3,5,6, and 21) 
• The draft report was delivered at the May board meeting.  CWB Engineers is reviewing the draft. 

 

Permanent Rain Gauges – CWB Engineers has presented City Corp staff with a recommendation on the 
rain gauges to be purchased.  City Corp staff will purchase and install the rain gauges at each site. 

East 2nd Street Wastewater Improvements –KAJACS has completed all pipe activity associated with the 
construction work west of Knoxville and north of East 2nd St.  The contractor is currently working on East 
2nd St and has completed construction to Utica.  KAJACS has completed a significant amount of cleanup 
this month.  They have started grout filling the abandoned lines and manholes.  The contractor is currently 
pouring concrete in front of the Glass company.  The project is progressing well and was approximately 
52% complete as of the June pay estimate.  The schedule will be tight to complete the project by the end 
of September in accordance with the current contract documents. 

City Mall – CWB Engineers has completed the design for this project.  Plans have been submitted to the 
Health Department, the Highway Department, and City Corporation for review and comment.  This 
project will be placed on hold until funding is secured for construction.   

Basins 7, 14, & 23 Wastewater Improvements – CWB Engineers, Inc. is approximately 95% complete 
with design on this project.  CWB will continue to work with the Highway Department and railroad to 
complete this design.  The project will be submitted to City Corp, the Health Department, the Highway 
Department, and the City of Russellville for review and comment after plans are completed.  This project 
will be advertised in 2014.   

Basins 1, 2, 8, & 11 Wastewater Improvements – CWB is approximately 95% complete with the design 
of this project.  CWB Engineers has submitted the plans to City Corp, the City of Russellville, and the 
Department of Health for review and comment.  The project will be advertised in July. 

 
1 

 



Basins 3, 5, 6, & 21 Wastewater Improvements – TV review is currently ongoing.  CWB is reviewing the 
draft report and preparing TV work orders and survey work orders for this project.   

Hydraulic Capacity Improvements –CWB Engineers has started initial layout.  Arkansas Cleaning and 
Televising has completed the televising associated with this project.  CWB is awaiting survey information 
for this project.     

System Wide Pump Station Improvements – Ricky Biffle and City Corp staff are addressing the system 
wide pump station improvements. 

 

 

       

 
2 

 



Board ltem # 10

Item Description: PCW Plant Design Update

Discussion: CDM Smith will provide details and progress relating to the
improvements at the Pollution Control Works Facility. The report will include
progress on regulatory requirements,

Recommendation: No action required.



 

Monthly Update to City Corporation July 2013.doc 

Memorandum 
 
To:  Mr. Steve Mallett, P.E. 
 
From:  Andrew Pownall, P.E.       
 
Date:  July 11th, 2013 
 
Subject:  PCW Improvement Update 
 

Pursuant to professional service agreement between CDM Smith and City Corporation dated 
December 30, 2011, to provide engineering services for Pollution Control Works (PCW) for the 
mitigation and compliance with NPDES discharge requirements outlined in Consent 
Administrative Order (LIS No. 09‐146), the following outlines and updates activities for the July 
2013 Board of Directors meeting.   
 
PCW Improvements Schedule I – Dechlorination 
 
The project is under construction. Below is a list of major ongoing and accomplished activities. 
 

 The July monthly meeting was conducted on July 10th between City Corporation, CDM 
Smith and the Contractor, VEI. The contractor continues to make good progress on the 
project. However, the contractor is awaiting some equipment and material deliveries. 
These items may delay the completion of the project. The contractor expects to be 
substantially complete by the end of the month. The contract final completion date is July 
31, 2013. 

 Some notable items accomplished during construction are as follows: 
o The asphalt was installed around the building and repairs were made to the plant 

drive. 
o Sample pumps were installed along with piping and valves in the building. 
o A portion of the electrical conduits and wires were installed. 
o The chemical injection lines were installed in the Chlorine contact basins. This was 

conducted during a plant shutdown in close coordination with the PCW staff. 
o Final grading continues. 

 The Contractor has submitted 103 submittals. The design team has reviewed and returned 
all submittals. 

 The Contractor has submitted 13 Request For Information (RFI) which the design team 
has reviewed and prepared responses for all 13.  

 No additional monthly progress meetings are expected. The substantial completion 
inspection is expected to be conducted near the end of July with final completion 
inspection expected within 30 days following substantial completion. 



 
 
Mr. Steve Mallett 
07/11/2013 
Page 2 
 
 

Monthly Update to City Corporation July 2013.doc 

 
PCW Improvements Schedule II – Nitrate Removal 
 
The project is under construction. Below is a list of major ongoing and accomplished activities. 
 

 The Notice to Proceed was issued for July 8, 2013. The contract dates for substantial 
completion and final completion are December 30, 2014 and January 29, 2015. 

 A pre‐construction meeting was conducted on June 26, 2013 between CDM Smith, City 
Corporation and the contractor, Archer Western Construction. 

 The contractor has begun mobilization. The contractor’s work trailer and some equipment 
have been delivered.   

 A second deductive Change Order was executed in the amount of $98,073.00. This brings 
the total contract deduction to $322,073. 

 The CDM Smith design team will continue to work with City Corporation and the 
Contractor to evaluate the VE items. 

 

 

 
cc:  Randy Bradley 
  Ricky Biffle 
  Larry Collins 
  Al Sun, P.E. 
  Matt Crow, P.E. 
   
 


	Meeting Agenda
	Item 4 - General Manager's Report
	Item 7 - Auditing Services
	Item 8 - Retirement Resolution
	Operating report.pdf
	Huckleberry Creek Reservoir


